
March 28, 2024

Committees and 
Board Meeting 
Packet 

Oceana County Board of Commissioners 

Prepared by: 

Tracy Byard
Oceana County Administratorr 

Board of Commissioners 
Tim Beggs, Vice ChairTi B 
Phil Morse 

Robert Walker, Chairperson
Craig Hardyy 
Paul Erickson

Today's meetings 
begin at 10:00 a.m.

1



PUBLIC NOTICE 
OCEANA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

100 State Street, Hart, MI 49420 – (231) 873-4835 

The Oceana County Board of Commissioners will hold the following committee meetings 

and its regular board meeting on Thursday, March 28, 2024 beginning at 10:00 a.m. and 
11:30 a.m. respectively.  The meetings will be held in the Oceana County Board of

Commissioners Room located at 100 State Street, Hart, MI 49420. 

• Properties Environment and Economic Development Committee
• Finance and Administration Committee

• Regular Board of Commissioners Meeting

Detailed meeting agendas are available online at: 

https://oceana.mi.us/government/board-of-commissioners/schedule-of-meetings/ 

or, by contacting the County Administrator’s Office at the address shown above, by 

telephone (231) 873-4835, or by email countyadmin@oceana.mi.us 

The Oceana County Board of Commissioners has cancelled the following meetings by 

order of the committee/board chairperson due to a lack of business: 

All meetings are open to all members of the public. This notice is given pursuant to, and in accordance with, the 

provisions of the Open Meetings Act, Public Act 267 of 1976, as amended.  Oceana County does not discriminate 

on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, and age in the delivery of services. 

2

https://oceana.mi.us/government/board-of-commissioners/schedule-of-meetings/
mailto:countyadmin@oceana.mi.us


AGENDA 

 Properties, Environment and Economic Development Committee 

There will be a committee meeting on Thursday, March 28, 2024, beginning at 10:00 a.m., or immediately 

following any preceding committee meetings, in the Oceana County Board of Commissioners Room, 100 State 

Street, Hart, MI 49420. 

Committee Chair: Paul Erickson        Committee Vice-Chair: Phil Morse 

Presenter Description Item # 

Mr. Erickson Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes from October 26, 2023                    Pages  4 & 5
Changes to the Agenda 

Approval of the Agenda 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Mr. James Kelly MSU Extension Annual Report 

Mr. Stephen 

Carlson, 

WMSRDC 

Consideration of Resolution 24-06 to Adopt the County Master Plan 2024-38 

DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORT 

Public Comment (state name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Adjournment 

Oceana County Board of Commissioners 
County Building 

100 State Street, Suite M-4, Hart, MI  49420 

 Pages 6 - 9 

 Pages 10 

3



UNOFFICIAL   

1 OCTOBER 12, 2023 

Properties, Environment, and Economic Development Committee 

The Properties, Environment, and Economic Development Committee Meeting was called to order by 

Chairperson Erickson, on Thursday, October 26, 2023, at 10:01 a.m. in the Board Conference Room. 

Present: Mr. Morse, Mr. Hardy, Mr. Walker, and Mr. Erickson. Absent: Mr. Beggs. 

Also Present: Ms. Byard, Oceana County Administrator, Mr. Garry McKeen, Oceana County Parks and 

Recreation Commission; Mr. John Cavanagh, Oceana’s Herald-Journal correspondent; and Ms. 

Anderson, Oceana County Clerk. 

Moved by Mr. Morse and seconded by Mr. Walker to approve the minutes of the September 28, 2023 

Properties, Environment, and Economic Development Committee as presented. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Chairperson Erickson asked if there were any changes to the agenda. Ms. Byard requested the addition 

of the Snow Plow Bids motion #2023-117. 

Moved by Mr. Hardy and seconded by Mr. Morse to approve the agenda as amended. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Public Comment 

There were no public comments at this time. 

Agenda Items 

Mr. McKeen, Oceana County Parks and Recreation Commission (OCP&R), explained that various grants 

were applied for, however were denied.  He stated that OCP&R is working on a Crystal Valley County 

Park master plan. He stated that and invoice from PM Blough and Assoc., was presented in the amount 

of $4,350.00 for payment of the landscaping for the project.  Crystal Township has agreed to cover 

$2,175 (50%) and he believes that it would be beneficial for Oceana County to contribute and 

requested consideration to authorize funds in the amount of $2,175 for the remaining portion of the 

invoice to facilitate the progress of the project. He indicated that this will be on the OCP&R agenda at 

the next meeting. Mr. Walker stated the board was aware of this project and feels the County Board 

should allow this expenditure. 

Ms. Byard requested consideration for the reappointment of Mr. Bill Adams and Mr. Mike Blackmer to 

the Construction Code Board of Appeals through July 31, 2025. 

Ms. Byard requested consideration to adopt Resolution #2023-11 opposing the pre-emption of local 

control in solar and wind siting and zoning. Mr. Morse noted that he conversed with Rep. Curtis 

VanderWall this morning and reported that the Statewide Septic Code and the pre-emption of local 

control in solar and wind siting and zoning have not been brought to the table yet, however, Sen. 

Bumstead and Rep. VanderWall have been working diligently on the opposition of both of these. 

Ms. Byard indicated that there were two snow plowing bids received which are from the same 

Companies as the previous year.  A bid from Hallack Contracting for locations one and two as well as 

Beckman Bros. for locations three and four was received.  Ms. Anderson read the amounts listed on 

the bids. 

Public Comment 

Garry McKeen, Oceana County Parks and Recreation indicated the Gales Pond Project is completed.  

Cedar Point continues to be worked on.   

4



UNOFFICIAL   

2 OCTOBER 12, 2023 

Chairperson Erickson asked if there was any further business to come before the Board. There being 

none, the meeting adjourned at 10:18 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Amy L. Anderson 

Oceana County Clerk 

5



Oceana County 
2023 ANNUAL REPORT

MESSAGE FROM THE DISTRICT DIRECTOR 

I’m excited to share the results of another successful year of 
partnership between Oceana County and Michigan State 
University (MSU) Extension. Because of your continued 
support, we’ve been able to make a difference in the lives of 
youth, families, businesses, and communities.  

MSU Extension offers a broad range of research-based 
educational services to County residents. Over this past year, 
we’ve empowered families and individuals to live healthier 
lives, supported new and local businesses, created 
opportunities for youth leadership development and career 
exploration, helped farmers with business management and 
mental health, and much more. Our staff live and work 
alongside County residents, are rooted in community 
relationships, and are responsive to community needs.  

Again, this year, we’ve welcomed Oceana County residents 
into our online community: we’ve offered online educational 
courses, answered questions on topics ranging from gardening 
to food safety, raised program awareness through social 
media, and provided a library of research-based resources 
they’ve browsed on our website.  

Our partnership with you makes this all possible. On behalf of 
the MSU Extension team serving Oceana County, thank you 
for another great year. We look forward to your continued 
support and hope you’ll be able to join us during one of our 
upcoming programs. 

James Kelly, 
District Director 

OCEANA COUNTY STAFF 

Lisa Fleury 
Community Nutrition Instructor 

Dr. Emily Lavely 
Tree Fruit Educator 

Amber Pumford 
4-H Admin Support

Sarah Schaner 
4-H Program Coordinator

Kathy Walicki 
Extension Administrative Support 

Dr. Ben Werling 
Vegetable Educator 

 
Oceana County MSU Extension 

844 S. Griswold St. Suite 400 
Hart, MI 49420 

231-873-2129

CONNECT 

msue.msu.edu 
mason@msu.edu 

MSU Extension Oceana 

@MSUExtension 

6



 

2 2 1.375 46 

January - December 2023 
 

 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 

MSU Extension Oceana County 
Food • Ag • Youth • Health • Environment • Community  

Since 1917, the Michigan State University (MSU) Extension has helped 
residents in Oceana County improve their lives through an educational 

process that applies knowledge to critical issues, needs, and 
opportunities. 

 

15,362 
 

Program 
Participants  

 
 

In programs lead by 
Oceana County 
staff on-line or 

statewide. 

10%  

Increase 
 

 

 

1,592 
  Oceana       

County 
Residents 

 
Participated in 

programs offered by 
MSU Extension 

 

15%  

Increase 
  

 

241 
Programs 
Attended 

 
By Oceana County 
residents either in 
county, outside of 

Oceana County, or 
on-line. 

 

31%  

Increase 
 

 

5,378 
Office 

Contacts  
 

Handled by the MSU 
Extension office.  

 
 

 

 

 

 965 
Oceana 
County 
Youth  

 
Participated in 

programs offered 
by MSU Extension 

 
 

Even

OCEANA COUNTY STAFF 
 
 
 

Educators Program Instructors Clerical Support Partnerships and coalitions 

53,868 
Facebook 

Page Views 
 

24% increase 

 
 

67 
Soil test-kits 

sold 

 
 

504 
Plat Books  

sold  

 
 

26,877 
Dollars of 

bulletins sold by 
Oceana office 

 

7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   OCEANA COUNTY FOCUS AREAS 
Agriculture 

MSU Extension works to increase farmers’ 
success while protecting the environment, 
ensuring food safety, reaching new markets and 
advancing agriculture through applied 
research. Agriculture is now one of the fastest 
growing sectors of the Michigan economy. 

• Loan prep for beginning farmers. 
• Succession Planning 
• Pest and Crop Management Update 
• Backyard Fruit 101 
• Field Crops Webinar, Young Growers Tour 
• Farm Stress, Farm Financial Analysis 
• Asparagus Day 
• Beekeepers Annual Conference 
• Crop Scout School, Pruning Workshops 
• Pesticide Application Training 
• Hop Chat & Beer State Conference 

 

Environment 
Our natural resources programs improve public 
understanding, help landowners and 
communities use those assets for sustainable 
long-term social and economic development 
and conserve natural resources for future 
generations. 
• Intro to Lakes 
• Lakes Monitoring Program 
• Midwest Stream Forum 
• Steelhead Fishery Workshop 
• Lake MI Regional Fisheries Workshop 
• Wild About Conservation 
• MI Birding 101  
• Lawn and Garden Hotline 

 

Community 
Successful and thriving communities combine 
knowledgeable and engaged legislators, 
businesses, community groups and residents. By 
connecting these groups with the most trusted 
tools, MSU Extension helps enhance the quality 
of life in Michigan. 
• Citizen Planner 
• Fiscally Ready Communities 
• Homebuyers Education, Attainable 

Housing 

Community (cont.) 
• Starting a commercial food business 
• College Access and Career Fair 
• Product Center Consultations 
• First Impressions Tourism - Hart 
• Regional Meetings for ARPA 
• Effective Meetings and Good Governance 
• Oceana County Planning Commission- 

Planning to Plan 
• Budget for Fiscal Sustainability 

 

Health &Nutrition 
MSU Extension’s programming promotes healthy 
lifestyles and empowers Michigan residents to take 
control of their health. Participants learn how to 
build nutritious diets on a budget, reduce 
foodborne diseases and become leaders in the 
food industry.  

• Eat Healthy, Be Active 
• SLEEP 
• Preserving Food as a Family 
• Tai Chi for Arthritis 
• A matter of Balance 
• Diabetes Education/Prevention 
• Chronic Disease PATH 
• Cooking for One 

 

Family and Youth 
Keeping Michigan families strong and successful—
financially, emotionally, and physically—is a big 
part of measuring MSU Extension’s success. 
Programs devoted to keeping families safe 
include those dealing with bullying and violence 
prevention. 

• Oceana Fair Activities 
• Relax: Alternatives to Anger 
• Various 4-H Club Events 
• Mindfully Feeding Infants & Toddlers 
• Promoting Social Emotional Health in 

Young Children 
• Exploration Days, on campus MSU 
• Helping Kids Manage Stress 
• 4-H Creative Arts Celebration 
• Horse, rabbit, cavy, cat clinics 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4-H Oceana County 
According to research completed by the Institute for Applied Research in Youth Development at 
Tufts University, 4-H’ers are 4X more likely to make contributions to their communities, 2X more 

likely to be civically active, and 2X more likely to make healthier choices. 

 

34 
Clubs 

20% increase 

 
 

 

263 
Members 

7% increase 

   

60 
Volunteers 

13% increase 

 
 

 

6,100 
Volunteer Hours 

 

 
8



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Highlights of MSU Extension Agricultural support in 2023: Oceana County has a long history of 
dependence on natural resources, and in particular agriculture, as a strong source of identity and economic 
prosperity. MSU Extension provided education and support to Oceana County residents through a variety of 
targeted workshops and services. In 2023,104 programs related to agriculture, agricultural business, and food 
systems were attended by residents of Oceana County 
 
The presence of the West Michigan Research Station in Hart provides an opportunity to bring to Oceana County 
expertise in various disciplines. Spring Horticulture Day is an annual program offered for West Central Michigan 
tree fruit growers. Approximately 90 growers attended, heard from commodity experts, networked, and received 3 
pesticide application and continuing education credits for certified crop advisors for this program. Asparagus Day 
is a similar event, drawing in growers from across the mid-west. In 2023, 139 participants took home essential 
knowledge to help them maintain best practices in crop management, disease prevention, storage techniques, and 
more, as well as having some industry vendors available for information. 

The 2023 Farm Field Day was held on Aug 8 at the West Central Michigan 
Research and Extension Center and was co-organized by MSU and the local 
MAEAP technician, Lynda Herremans. This event was in partnership with the 
Oceana Conservation District, Farm Bureau, and the West Central Michigan 
Horticultural Research Center, with additional sponsorships from 14 industry 
partners. With over 90 attendees, this field day highlighted fundamentals of 
current spray equipment and technologies that growers can use to improve farm 
efficiency and fruit quality. Spray drones were demonstrated in asparagus and 
cherry trees, and an autonomous sprayer, the mini-GUSS, was demonstrated in 
pear trees. 

West Central Horticulture Breakfast Meetings are seasonal meetings for tree fruit growers to share timely 
information, weather updates, and pest and disease information about ongoing or emerging issues. This is a 
great meeting to share information with growers and engage industry members who sponsor breakfast each 
week. Coupled with one-on-one farm visits and local research plots, Extension services remain an essential 
piece of a thriving agricultural economy. 

Oceana County farmers took advantage of a webinar focused on creating a farm business plan. The business 
plan helps to evaluate alternatives, identify market opportunities, and communicate ideas to potential lenders 
and business partners. Participants explored how to understand what lenders look for in a business plan when 
farms are seeking loan financing.  

Additionally, in the spring of 2023 MSU Extension relaunched soil testing services for both home and 
commercial purposes. Both segments took advantage of the testing and accompanying analysis that MSU 
Extension soil testing services produces.  

 

Oceana County boasts a diverse 
agricultural economy that produces 
over $212 million annually, 60% in crop 
sales and 40% in livestock.  
  
MSU Extension is helping to make a 
difference in Oceana County. 

Agriculture Highlight 

9



Resolution #24-06 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT MASTER PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Planning Enabling Act (MPEA) authorizes the Planning Commission to 
prepare a Master Plan for the use, development and preservation of all lands in the County; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission prepared a proposed updated Master Plan and submitted the 
plan to the County Board for review and comment; and 

WHEREAS, on December 7, 2023, the Oceana County Board received and reviewed the proposed 
Master Plan prepared by the Planning Commission and authorized distribution of the Master Plan to the Notice 
Group entities identified in the MPEA; and 

WHEREAS, notice was provided to the Notice Group entities as provided in the MPEA; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on March 7, 2024 to consider public 
comment on the proposed updated Master Plan, and to further review and comment on the proposed updated 
Master Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the County Board finds that the proposed updated Master Plan is (a) desirable, (b) 
provides factual information about Oceana County, and (c) promotes coordination of land use and 
development decisions within Oceana County; 

WHEREAS, the MPEA authorizes the County Board to assert by resolution its right to approve or reject 
the proposed Master Plan; 

THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Adoption of 2024 Master Plan. The County Board hereby approves and adopts the proposed
2024 Oceana County Master Plan, including all of the chapters, figures, maps and tables contained therein. 
Pursuant to MCL 125.3843 the County Board has asserted by resolution its right to approve or reject the 
proposed Master Plan and therefore the approval granted herein is the final step for adoption of the plan as 
provided in MCL 125.3843 and therefore the plan is effective as of March 28, 2024. 

2. Distribution to Notice Group. The County Board approves distribution of the adopted plan to
the Notice Group. 

3. Findings of Fact. The County Board has made the foregoing determination based on a review of
existing land uses in the County, a review of the existing Master Plan provisions and maps, input received from 
the Planning Commission and public hearing, and with the assistance of the West Michigan Shoreline 
Regional Development Commission, and finds that the updated Master Plan will support and facilitate 
coordination of the use, preservation, and development of lands in Oceana County. 

4. Effective Date. The Master Plan shall be effective as of the date of adoption of this resolution.

The foregoing resolution offered by Board Member  . 
Second offered by Board Member  . 

Roll call vote: 

CERTIFICATION: 

10



AGENDA 

 Finance and Administration Committee 

There will be a committee meeting on Thursday, March 28, 2024, beginning at 10:00 a.m., or immediately 

following any preceding committee meetings, in the Oceana County Board of Commissioners Room, 100 State 

Street, Hart, MI 49420. 

Committee Chair:  Craig Hardy        Committee Vice-Chair: Tim Beggs 

Presenter Description Item # 

Commissioner 

Hardy 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Approval of Meeting Minutes from March 14, 2024             Pages 12 - 16 

Changes to the Agenda 

Approval of the Agenda 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Administrator 

Byard 

Medical Care Facility Millage Renewal Proposal 

  Pages 17 
2024-37 

Mr. Stephen 

Carlson, 

WMSRDC/Mr. 

Troy Maloney, 

Emergency Mgt 

Dir 

Consideration of Resolution 24-07 to adopt the Hazard Mitigation Plan

  Pages 18 

2024-39 

Administrator 

Byard 

Consideration to dispose of a county car and transfer to the Airport for the 

purpose of a courtesy car. 

2024-40 

Administrator 

Byard 

Consideration for approval of Budget Adjustment for Elections/

Interim Elderly/Shelby Twp Comm Park                                 Pages  19
2024-41 

Lieutenant Mark 

Schneider 

Consideration to apply for a MMRMA Rap Grant for the purchase of a 

Body Scanner.                                                                                   Pages 20 - 23
2024-42 

Administrator 

Byard 

Administrator’s Review of Selected Claims for Payment       Pages 24 & 25 

Administrator’s Report   

#2024-43 

Department Head Reports 

Public Comment (state name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Adjournment 

Oceana County Board of Commissioners 
County Building 

100 State Street, Suite M-4, Hart, MI  49420 

 Pages 26 - 43 

11



                                                                                             UNOFFICIAL 

1 MARCH 14, 2024 

 

Finance and Administration Committee 
 

The Finance and Administration Committee Meeting was called to order by Chairperson Hardy on 

Thursday, March 14, 2024, at 10:17 a.m., in the Board Conference Room. 

 

Present: Mr. Erickson, Mr. Morse, Mr. Beggs, Mr. Walker, and Mr. Hardy.  

 

Also Present: Ms. Byard, Oceana County Administrator; Mr. Kory Hansen, Oceana County Medical Care 

Facility Administrator; Ms. Janet Schultz, Benona Township Resident; Mr. John Cavanagh, Oceana’s 

Herald-Journal correspondent; and Ms. Anderson, Oceana County Clerk. 

 

Moved by Mr. Walker and supported by Mr. Beggs to approve the minutes of the February 22, 2024 

Finance and Administration Committee meeting as presented. 

 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

 

Chairperson Hardy asked if there were any other additions to the agenda. Ms. Byard noted that the 

Drain Commission budget adjustment should be removed. 

 

Moved by Mr. Beggs and supported by Mr. Morse to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

 

Ms. Byard noted that the Special Finance minutes from the September 26, 2023 and October 19, 2023 

should be added to the agenda.  

 

Moved by Mr. Morse and supported by Mr. Beggs to approve the minutes from the Special Finance 

Meetings of September 26, 2023 as presented. 

 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

 

Moved by Mr. Beggs and supported by Mr. Erickson to approve the minutes from the Special Finance 

Meetings of October 19, 2023 as presented. 

 

Voice vote.  Motion carried. 

 

Public Comment 

 

There were no public comments at this time. 

 

Agenda Items 

 

Mr. Walker began discussion regarding the Land Bank Authority purchasing policy. 

 

Ms. Byard brought forth budget adjustments regarding Elections and the impact of nine days of Early 

Voting. The current adjustment addresses the wages for the Election Inspectors for all of this year.  

Ms. Byard also noted there will also be another adjustment regarding the expense for security officers. 

Ms. Anderson noted that some of the initial expense is due to the purchase of items that were not 

previously required for the County to have on hand such as ballot containers, bags and signage.  She 

also noted that these purchases were one-time and would be used for future elections and were a part 

of a grant and/or reimbursed by the State. 

 

Mr. Kory Hansen requested approval of the Medical Care Facility Millage Renewal Proposal.  There was 

discussion regarding the wording and it was suggested that the verbiage be adjusted to be clearer for 

the voter.  There will be no action taken today and will be revisited at the next meeting. 

 

Ms. Byard did not read the claims for payment, but the following was provided: 

 

12



                                                                                             UNOFFICIAL 

2 MARCH 14, 2024 

 

REVIEW OF CLAIMS FOR PAYMENT (>= $1,000 and Other Noteworthy Expenditures) 

Fund # 

Dept. 

# Dept. Name Amount Purpose 

Special Revenue 

Funds         

          

215 - Friend of the Court   $        2,194.06  

to Image Soft for professional 

services and icloud storage 

       $        8,981.00  

to Image Soft for professional 

services and icloud storage 

          

238 - Pentwater Hart Trail   $        1,282.72  

to Fleis & Vandenbrink for 

survey  

          

243 - Brownfield Redevelopment    $        3,447.50  

to Fishbeck for professional 

services  

          

260 - Indigent Defense   $        8,787.00  

to Good Law for court appointed 

attorney fees. 

       $        5,833.33  

to Indigent Defense Consultants 

for managed assigned counsel 

services. 

       $        1,320.00  

to Annette K. Howe for court 

appointed attorney fees.  

       $      11,922.00  

to Springstead Law Offices for 

court appointed attorney fees.  

       $        1,425.00  

to Envista Forensics for 

professional services  

          

298 - Technology and Innovation   $        1,055.58  

to Wells Fargo Financial for 

equipment leases 

       $        1,833.04  

to Business Information 

Systems for Contract renewal. 

          

549 - Building Department Fund  $        6,426.55  

to RVN Inspections, LLC for 

permits, residential plan 

reviews, and commercial plan 

reviews 

13



                                                                                             UNOFFICIAL 

3 MARCH 14, 2024 

 

       $        1,200.00  

to Shoreline Inspection Service 

LLC for permits, residential plan 

reviews, and commercial plan 

reviews. 

       $        8,759.53  

to Randolph D Miller, LLC for 

permits, residential plan 

reviews, and commercial plan 

reviews 

       $        2,807.72  

to Sonnie Smith for permits, 

residential plan reviews, and 

commercial plan reviews 

General Fund 

    

          

257 - Equalization   $      24,210.00  

to V&V Assessing for 

equalization and assessing 

services. 

          

262 - Elections   $        8,426.86  to Election Source for supplies  

       $        1,160.80  

to Oceana Herald for election 

advertising  

          

265 - Courthouse & Grounds  $        1,606.74  

to Republic Services for trash 

removal 

       $        2,471.04  to City of Hart for utilities 

       $        1,287.46  to DTE Energy for utilities  

          

283 - Circuit Court   $        1,618.53  

to Business Information 

Systems for Contract renewal. 

       $        4,473.92  

to Hayes Law Office for monthly 

appropriations. 

       $        3,300.00  

to Heacock Reporting for court 

contracted services. 

       $        4,473.92  

to Springstead Law Offices for 

monthly appropriations  

          

301 - Sheriff  $        6,900.00  

to Carahsoft Technology Group 

for yearly service contracts 

       $        1,263.12  to AT&T mobility 

14



                                                                                             UNOFFICIAL 

4 MARCH 14, 2024 

 

       $        7,387.97  to Wex Bank for fuel purchases 

       $        1,651.71  

to Amazon capital services for 

machinery and equipment 

       $        3,844.05  to Kiesler's Police Supply 

       $        1,260.00  

to Lighthouse Car Care Center 

for vehicle repairs/Maintenance 

       $        1,268.16  

to Mears Service Center for 

Vehicle repairs/Maintenance 

       $        1,180.00  

to Michigan Sheriff's Association 

for employee training  

       $        3,643.22  to NYE uniforms  

          

351 - Jail   $        1,461.35  to DTE for utilities  

       $        4,941.44  

to Gordon Food Service for 

inmate boarding 

       $      15,536.15  

to Advanced Correctional 

Healthcare for inmate medical 

       $        3,125.52  to City of Hart for Utilities 

          

528 - Transfer Station   $      22,179.15  to American Classic Dumpster  

       $        1,818.50  to Geocycle for tire disposal 

          

568 - Soil Conservation District   $      14,000.00  

to Oceana Conservation District 

for FY 2024 appropriation. 

          

601 - Health Department   $      42,788.75  

to DHD#10 for 2024 

appropriation. 

          

15



                                                                                             UNOFFICIAL 

5 MARCH 14, 2024 

 

649 - Mental Health   $      10,833.33  

to West Michigan CMH for Local 

February 2024 Match 

       $      10,833.33  

to West Michigan CMH for Local 

March 2024 Match 

          

728 - Economic & Community Development  $      65,000.00  

to Oceana County Economic 

Alliance for Fiscal Year 2024 

Appropriation of funds. 

          

  ~ Total  $    341,220.05    

 

 

Administrator’s Report  

 

A meeting was held yesterday with regards to opioids in the jail.  Upon completion of the review of 

this recording, a report will be given at a later date.   

 

There will be an OCEA meeting this week.  

 

Materials Management meeting on Friday to discuss the plan to be completed and started for our 

county.  A meeting with Erin Kuhne with WMSRDC will follow that meeting.  A report will be 

forthcoming. 

 

Department Head Reports 

There were no department head reports at this time. 

Public Comment 

 

Ms. Janet Schultz, a Benona Township resident stated that she was part of the Early Voting expressed 

the endeavor might have been expensive, but it was important to the participating voters. 

 

Chairperson Hardy asked if there was any further business to come before the Board. There being 

none, the meeting adjourned at 11:01 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Amy L. Anderson 

Oceana County Clerk 

 

16



Resolution #24-05 

March 28, 2024

RESOLUTION #24-05 RE MEDICAL CARE FACILITY OPERATION MILLAGE 

Moved by _________________________ and seconded by ______________________ to 

approve the language of the following ballot proposal for the purpose of funding the operations 

of the Oceana County Medical Care Facility. 

OCEANA COUNTY 

MEDICAL CARE FACILITY OPERATING MILLAGE 

This proposal reestablishes the 2-mill millage previously approved by the electors that expired 

after the December 2023 levy. The Headlee Amendment previously reduced this millage to 1.973 

mills. This ballot proposal renews the previous 1.973 mills and authorizes a new additional millage 

of 0.027 mills to restore the mills that were rolled back by the Headlee Amendment. 

Shall the limitation upon the total amount of taxes that may be levied against all taxable property 

within Oceana County be increased by the amount of two dollars ($2.00) per one thousand dollars 

($1,000.00) (2.00 mills) against all taxable property in Oceana County for a period of 8 years, 2024 

through 2031 inclusive, for the purpose of funding the operations of the Oceana County Medical 

Care Facility? Revenue from this millage will be disbursed to Oceana County. If approved and 

levied in its entirety, this millage would raise an estimated $2,962,230.00 in the first calendar year 

of the levy. 

YES 

NO 

Roll call vote: 

17



Hazard Mitigation Plan Adoption Resolution #24-07 

Oceana County 

Whereas Oceana County, Michigan has experienced natural and man-made disasters that have damaged 

commercial, residential, and public properties, displaced citizens and businesses, and presented general public 

health and safety concerns; and 

Whereas Oceana County has prepared a Hazard Mitigation Plan under the guidance of the Oceana County 

Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC), which describes known disasters and impacts, potential hazards, 

and strategies to reduce overall damage and impact from hazards; and 

Whereas the Hazard Mitigation Plan has been reviewed by countywide residents, business owners, and 

federal, state and local agencies, and has been revised to reflect their concerns; 

Now, therefore, be it resolved that: 

1. The Oceana County Hazard Mitigation Plan is hereby adopted as an official plan of Oceana County.

2. The Oceana County Emergency Management director is charged with supervising implementation and

monitoring progress of the Plan’s recommendations within the funding limitations as provided by the Oceana 

County Board of Commissioners or other sources.  

3. The Oceana County LEPC shall provide oversight and guidance toward implementation of the Plan.

4. The Oceana County Emergency Management director shall provide an annual progress report to the

Oceana County Board of Commissioners, including: 

a. A review of any disasters or emergencies that occurred during the previous calendar year.

b. A review of mitigation actions taken, including accomplishments and limitations encountered

during the previous year.

c. A proposed outline of mitigation projects and activities for the following calendar year.

Passed this day of _____________________________(date). 

Signed___________________________________________ 

18



Date:  3/28/2024

Department:  101-262 Elections/251 Interim Elderly/Shelby Twp Comm Park

Reason:  To adjust other contractual for elections to to cover early voting costs,adjust interim elderly and Sheby Twp Comm Park.

Line Item Number Department Description Amount Budgeted Line Item Number Department Description Amount Budgeted

101-262-676.022 Elections Election Reimbursem $28,000.00 $60,000.00 101-262-821.000 Elections Other Contractual $28,000.00 $7,000.00

251-000-802.000 Interim Elderl State Grant $9,499.00 $32,000.00 251-000-802.000 Interim Elderl Expenditures $9,499.00 $32,000.00

239-000-676.000 Shelby Twp C Reimbursement-Gene $1,121,690.00 $306,332.00 293-000-802.000 Shelby Twp C Expenditures $1,121,690.00 $306,331.00

$1,159,189.00 $1,159,189.00

Administrator's Signature________________________________________

BOC Approved:_____________

Revenue Expenditure

OCEANA COUNTY #04-2024

Request for Budget Amendment

(Complete and Submit to Oceana County Admininstrator)

19



Sheriff Body Scanner- A request from the Sheriff’s Office to approve the purchase of a 

Tek84 Intercept Full Body Scanner to prevent the introduction of illegal substances into jail. 
There has been a significant increase in attempts to smuggle deadly illicit drugs into the jail. 
This poses a high degree of risk to not just inmates but also correctional staff. 

Description of Project- The scanner’s 34” x 72” frame allows it to be placed inside our 1966 

small linear jail with minimal structural changes. The scanner is not permanently anchored to 
the floor, CDC approved, no “safety zone” needed around unit and low-dose x-rays allows 
subjects to be screened up to 1,000 times per year. 

Currently, the Oceana Co. Jail staff strip searches every arrest coming into the jail. Michigan 
Compiled Laws (764.25a) states a person arrested or detained for a misdemeanor offense-shall 
not be strip searched unless both of the following occur: the person arrested being lodged into a 
detention facility by order of a court or there is reasonable cause to believed that the person is 
concealing a weapon, a controlled substance, or evidence of a crime. (2) The strip search is 
conducted by a person who has obtained prior written authorization from the chief law 
enforcement officer. If a strip search is conducted under this section; the arresting officer shall 
prepare a report of the strip search. The report shall include the following information: name 
and sex of offender, name and sex of officer, time and date, justification, list of all items 
recovered, copy of the written authorization and a copy provided to the offender. 

The above procedures(s) are not practical for a jail facility or its staff as incoming arrests can be 
for traffic offenses that do not directly give reasonable cause to believe drug/weapon 
possession is afoot; other arrestees may not be familiar to staff so we do not know their drug 
history or intentions. Statistics indicate 70% of subjects coming to jail are addicted to 
prescription or illicit drugs. Obviously, at this point everyone knows the current crisis of 
fentanyl in our community. 

Furthermore, the current national judicial trends have caused a repeated cycle of inmates 
coming in and out of our jail. Bonds are now lowered nationally to allow inmates to get out of 
jail quicker to fight their cases, but their addiction remains. Now, these inmates are bonding out 
of jail and then “catching” a second case before they have been even sentenced on the first 
case. This greatly increases the opportunity to bring contraband into the jail. Additionally, 
courts are using a “delayed sentence” approach. This means the offender gets sentenced, but 
the judge doesn’t remand them immediately to jail. Instead, they are given time to get their 
affairs in order and then come to jail. This allows them to prepare for jail by ingesting or 
inserting plastic bags of drugs into their bodies so it can be consumed or shared after coming to 
jail. Also, there has been an increased female inmate population as well as inmates 
transitioning from their biological gender coming to jail. This is an unprecedented time for 
housing people in a county jail.  

Over the last 18 months we have had (4) inmates smuggle deadly narcotics in the Oceana 
County Jail. The one plastic bag of was pure fentanyl. All, but one person required medical 

20



services. The most recent inmate was March 11th, 2024. It was discovered after the inmate 
attempted suicide in the jail’s intake shower.   

21



Funding- We believe this machine will reduce drug over-doses and help protect the health and 

safety of all of those in jail as well as reduce our risk of liability. The cost is $142,500 which 
includes a One Year Parts and Labor warranty. Additional warranties are available.  

The Sheriff’s Office plans to apply for a grant through Michigan Municipal Risk Management 
Authority that would reimburse the County up to $50,000 for installing the scanner at the jail. 
This grant will be submitted before April 10th, 2024. 

The remaining balance of $92,500 will come from the Jail Commissary Fund that has received 
more revenue than expected. The Jail Commissary Fund can be utilized because the scanner will 
also be able to be used to inspect commissary packages and inmate mail. Note that this is a 
single quote (Sole Sourcing) as they are the only company that sells this brand specific to 
correctional facilities. 

22



Can funds from the Opioid Funding be used? At the present time, only Kalamazoo County and 
St. Clair County have used their settlement money to purchase the Tek84 scanner. I personally 
feel using this allocated money the county received from the Opioid Settlement would be 
better spent on new countywide opioid programming.  

Allegan, Berrien, Branch, Calhoun, Chippewa, Clinton, Ingham (2), Macomb (2), Manistee, 
Monroe (2), Ottawa, Saginaw, Van Buren and Wayne (2) have recently purchased this scanner. 

Quote.docx

Goal- The scanner is not meant to be used to add charges for a person who made a mistake 

and was found with a personal use amount, but goal is to keep inmates from over-dosing and 
dying in the jail. Gone are the days when inmates would smuggle cigarettes or marijuana into 
the jail. Now staff is faced with inmates whose opioid addiction is so outlandish they will insert 
a deadly drug into their body cavities.  No matter how hard the Corrections Deputies try to 
keep these drugs and weapons out of the jail, they find themselves at a loss due to the listed 
challenges.   

23



Fund # Dept. # Dept. Name Amount Purpose

Special Revenue Funds

9,886.50$          
to MKG Law Office, PLLC for court 
appointed attorney fees

11,382.00$        to VC3, Inc for technology

8,358.35$          
to RVN Inspections, LLC for permits, residential 
plan reviews, and commercial plan reviews

1,150.00$          

to Shoreline Inspection Service LLC for 
permits, residential plan reviews, and 
commercial plan reviews.

1,915.60$          

to Randolph D Miller, LLC for permits, 
residential plan reviews, and commercial plan 
reviews

1,150.00$          
to Thomas Story for permits, residential plan 
revies, and commercial plan reviews

1,359.42$          
to Sonnie Smith for permits, residential plan 
reviews, and commercial plan reviews

8,184.83$          
to H Security & Investigation for 
courthouse security services

18,150.00$        
to V&V Assessing for contracualized 
Equalization Director services

9,135.00$          
to Election Source for Public Accuracy 
Testing 

7,199.86$          
to Spectrum Printers for February 2024 
Presidential Primary Ballots

3,155.00$          
to MGT of America Consulting, Inc for 
child support billing

19,956.02$        
to Enterprise FM Trust for vehicle repairs, 
maintenance, and vehicle leases

 $          1,819.92 
to Elan Financial Services for various 
expenditues

 $          1,625.49 
to Engineered Protections Systems, Inc for 
security purposes

 $          7,017.86 
to Mears Service Center for vehicle repairs 
and maintenance

Oceana County Administrator
REVIEW OF CLAIMS FOR PAYMENT (>= $1,000 and Other Noteworthy Expenditures)

260 - Indigent Defense 

298 - Technology and Innovation 

549 - Building Department Fund

General Fund

101 - Board of Commissioners

262 - Elections 

289 - Friend of the Court

257 - Equalization

301 - Sheriff

24



331 - Marine  $          1,500.00 
to the Village of Pentwater for 2024 Marine 
Slip

1,643.33$          
to Gordon Food Serice for inmate board and 
janitorial supplies

1,255.26$          
to Gordon Food Serice for inmate board and 
janitorial supplies

1,486.73$          
to Affordable Auto Sales & Services for 
vehicle repairs and mainteance

8,589.22$          
to MWI Animal Health for cat cages and 
dog tags

26,352.40$        to American Classic Dumpster Services 

6,876.22$          to WMU Homer Stryker M.D. for autopsies

~ Total 159,149.01$      

648 - Medical Examiner

351 - Jail 

430 - Animal Control

528 - Transfer Station

25



COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT  
MARCH 28, 2024 

TRANSFER STATION SCALE QUOTES 

We recently received updated quotes for the scales for the Transfer Station.  Copies of 

those quotes have been included.  GR Metrology provided a quote for a 50’ X 11” totaling 

$98,729.44.  West Michigan Scales provided two quotes.  The first was for a 70’ X 11’ totaling 

$ $73,215 with an option of adding guard rails for $6,510.  The second quote was for a 50’ X 

11’ totaling $62,305 with an option of adding guard rails for $4,650. Please let me know when 

you would like to discuss. 

HEALTH DEPARTMENT QUIT CLAIM/LEASE AGREEMENT 

The Quit Claim Deed and the release from the Lease Agreement relating to the Health 

Department have been processed with the County Register of Deeds after review from 

Commissioner Erickson.  The Health Department building is now Oceana County property. 

MATERIALS MANAGEMENT 

The Materials Management group met on Friday, March 14th to discuss next steps 

relating to the Materials Management Plans for each of our counties as well as discussion 

relating to who the DPA would be after EGLE had determined that the DPA must be a 

governmental agency.  We then met with Erin Kuhn of WMSRDC to relay several questions 

and ask if these items be placed in the agreement that would be signed by the counties.  The 

following is the list of items that were discussed: 

1. WMSRDC will take the lead in gathering information and reaching out to haulers,

recyclers, etc.

2. WMSRDC will provide letters for counties to send to adjacent counties and document

efforts to collaborate.

3. WMSRDC will provide an intergovernmental agreement for execution by the counties

and a resolution template that approves the agreement and establishes each county’s

NOI.

4. WMSRDC will be responsible for all public meeting and hearing postings and notices

to local units of governments for the DPA and MMPC

5. WMSRDC will take the lead in ensuring that the local units are notified of the

approval of the plan and their opportunity for approval.

26



COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT  
MARCH 28, 2024 

6. WMSRDC as DPA recognizes their ongoing responsibilities to maintain and amend

the plan as needed.

WMSRDC will be following up with an updated agreement.  The agreement will be provided 

to each of the boards for approval once it is complete.  We are still waiting for some 

finalization of items through EGLE, which is slowing the process. 

REQUEST FOR LETTER OF OPPOSITION 

The Michigan Association of Counties sent information stating that a group of 

senators introduced a Congressional Review Act resolution of disapproval relating to the 

Interim Final Rule pertaining to ARPA funds.  Currently, the final rule states that ARPA 

funds must be obligated by December 31, 2024, with the expenditure deadline through 

December 31, 2026.  The disapproval resolution if passed would limit the counties’ ability to 

use funds for payroll for compliance and reporting personnel and ability to (re)obligate funds 

in the case that a contract is unable to fulfill their obligation.  It would require the obligation 

of funds by December 31, 2024.  Without the flexibility counties would have difficulty coming 

into compliance with the ARPA statute.  MAC is asking that counties submit a letter of 

opposition to allow the Interim Final Rule to remain as is.  (Please see attached) 

OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

As stated previously, we are gathering information for the County Auditors to allow 

them to complete the County Audit.  They are scheduled to be in house May 6 – 10.   

Jessica and have been working through changes to the Personnel Manual as presented 

by the County Attorney.  We are hoping to have this completed soon to allow for review by 

the County Board. 

27



Thursday, March 21, 2024 Quote#J0321A 

Ms. Tracy Byard 

Oceana County Administrator 

Oceana County 

100 State St., Suite M-4 

Hart, MI  49420 

Dear Ms. Byard, 

Thank you for your interest in West Michigan Scale Company, Inc.  In response to our conversation 

concerning a new truck scale for your operation, I’m pleased to submit the following proposal for your 

consideration.  

The purchase of a truck scale is an important long-term investment, and it is crucial that careful 

consideration be given to the best product available for your requirements.  As an independent scale 

distributor, it is our responsibility to evaluate the benefits and advantages of the many different 

products available on the market, and recommend the product, which will best serve your 

requirements.  For your application, we are pleased to offer the quality built Cardinal Truck Scale.  

Cardinal Scale is a major scale manufacturer in the United States and has a reputation of building well 

engineered quality truck scales.  The following is a detailed list of specifications and characteristics  

One (1) Cardinal Armor Steel Deck Truck Scale 

1) Platform Size: 50’ X 11’

2) Capacity: 200,000 lbs.

3) Concentrated Load Capacity: 50 tons

4) Deck: 5/16” Steel

5) All steel surfaces will be hot phosphate cleaned, epoxy primed, and hard-coat alkyd enamel

finish, to be applied in a dust free environmentally controlled paint chamber.

6) Scale has been assigned a NTEP Conformance Certificate as provided by the

National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST).

Price Installed and Calibrated: $ 56,305.00 

Made in the USA 

FOB, Shipping Point 

Price Includes:  Platform modules, Cardinal 225D indicator, Epson TM-U290 ticket printer (standard 

gross-net-tare print format is included), Cardinal SB600 remote display, junction boxes, 60’ of heavy 

duty load cell cable from platform to indicator, instruction manual, a complete set of foundation and 

installation prints, installation and calibration. 

Installation Includes:  Unloading and assembly of weigh modules, installing load cells and related 

hardware, aligning scale weighbridge, interfacing all electronic components, calibrating and adjusting 

scale with certified test weights to specifications set forth by NITS handbook 44.  

943 Industrial Parkway 

Plainwell, MI  49080 

(269) 685-9521

28

tbyard
Highlight



Page 2 

CUSTOMER TO PROVIDE: 

1) Concrete foundation per manufacturer's specifications.

2) Crane to unload and set weigh modules.

3) Dedicated 115 VAC line to the indicator, remote display and printer.

4) Any conduit requirements from the scale to scale house.

5) Verification of existing soil bearing capacity.

6) Permits as necessary.

Note: West Michigan Scale can provide quotations on any of the above requirements upon request.  

Anything above the project scope will be billed at current hourly rates. 

OPTIONAL: 4’ Guide rails – Add: $ 4,650.00 

CRANE COST: Provided by local contractor - Estimated Cost:  $ 3,000.00 

TERMS:  
1/3 Due upon placing order 

1/3 Due upon receipt of equipment 

1/3 Due upon project completion  

FOB: Webb City, MO.  (Estimated freight cost $ 3,000.00) 

DELIVERY: 12 – 14 weeks 

WARRANTY: Per Manufactures specifications.  Labor warranty is 90 days from date of installation.  

SERVICE: West Michigan Scale Company provides 24-hour service by factory-trained service 

technicians.  

As specialists in all heavy-duty truck scale systems, we are prepared to handle your weighing 

requirements from start to completion. Your satisfaction with our products and services is guaranteed. 

Cordially yours, 

Jeff Thrasher
West Michigan Scale Company 

Sales, Service & Rentals 

jthrasher@wmscales.com 

29

tbyard
Highlight

tbyard
Highlight

tbyard
Highlight



Thursday, March 21, 2024 Quote#J0321B 

Ms. Tracy Byard 

Oceana County Administrator 

Oceana County 

100 State St., Suite M-4 

Hart, MI  49420 

Dear Ms. Byard, 

Thank you for your interest in West Michigan Scale Company, Inc.  In response to our conversation 

concerning a new truck scale for your operation, I’m pleased to submit the following proposal for your 

consideration.  

The purchase of a truck scale is an important long-term investment, and it is crucial that careful 

consideration be given to the best product available for your requirements.  As an independent scale 

distributor, it is our responsibility to evaluate the benefits and advantages of the many different 

products available on the market, and recommend the product, which will best serve your 

requirements.  For your application, we are pleased to offer the quality built Cardinal Truck Scale.  

Cardinal Scale is a major scale manufacturer in the United States and has a reputation of building well 

engineered quality truck scales.  The following is a detailed list of specifications and characteristics  

One (1) Cardinal Armor Steel Deck Truck Scale 

1) Platform Size: 70’ X 11’

2) Capacity: 200,000 lbs.

3) Concentrated Load Capacity: 50 tons

4) Deck: 5/16” Steel

5) All steel surfaces will be hot phosphate cleaned, epoxy primed, and hard-coat alkyd enamel

finish, to be applied in a dust free environmentally controlled paint chamber.

6) Scale has been assigned a NTEP Conformance Certificate as provided by the

National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST).

Price Installed and Calibrated: $ 67,215.00 

Made in the USA 

FOB, Shipping Point 

Price Includes:  Platform modules, Cardinal 225D indicator, Epson TM-U290 ticket printer (standard 

gross-net-tare print format is included), Cardinal SB600 remote display, junction boxes, 60’ of heavy 

duty load cell cable from platform to indicator, instruction manual, a complete set of foundation and 

installation prints, installation and calibration. 

Installation Includes:  Unloading and assembly of weigh modules, installing load cells and related 

hardware, aligning scale weighbridge, interfacing all electronic components, calibrating and adjusting 

scale with certified test weights to specifications set forth by NITS handbook 44.  

943 Industrial Parkway 

Plainwell, MI  49080 

(269) 685-9521

30

tbyard
Highlight



Page 2 

CUSTOMER TO PROVIDE: 

1) Concrete foundation per manufacturer's specifications.

2) Crane to unload and set weigh modules.

3) Dedicated 115 VAC line to the indicator, remote display and printer.

4) Any conduit requirements from the scale to scale house.

5) Verification of existing soil bearing capacity.

6) Permits as necessary.

Note: West Michigan Scale can provide quotations on any of the above requirements upon request.  

Anything above the project scope will be billed at current hourly rates. 

OPTIONAL: 4’ Guide rails – Add: $ 6,510.00 

CRANE COST: Provided by local contractor - Estimated Cost:  $ 3,000.00 

TERMS:  
1/3 Due upon placing order 

1/3 Due upon receipt of equipment 

1/3 Due upon project completion  

FOB: Webb City, MO.  (Estimated freight cost $ 3,000.00) 

DELIVERY: 10 – 12 weeks 

WARRANTY: Per Manufactures specifications.  Labor warranty is 90 days from date of installation.  

SERVICE: West Michigan Scale Company provides 24-hour service by factory-trained service 

technicians.  

As specialists in all heavy-duty truck scale systems, we are prepared to handle your weighing 

requirements from start to completion. Your satisfaction with our products and services is guaranteed. 

Cordially yours, 

Jeff Thrasher
West Michigan Scale Company 

Sales, Service & Rentals 

jthrasher@wmscales.com 

31

tbyard
Highlight

tbyard
Highlight

tbyard
Highlight



Quote #011629 P a g e  | 1 

Grand Rapids | Metro Detroit | Bay City 

www.grmetrology.com 

Proposal for 50’ x 11’ New Rice Lake Survivor Truck 

Scale Project  

American Classic Roofing and Building 
1845 Newaygo Rd 

Bailey, MI 49303 

ATTENTION 
Jacob Thompson 

DATE 
November 17, 2023 

PROPOSED BY  
Jason Dennis 
Jason.Dennis@grmetrology.com 
616-260-6507

32



Quote #011629 P a g e  | 2 

Grand Rapids | Metro Detroit | Bay City 

www.grmetrology.com  

TRUCK SCALE PROPOSAL 

Dear Jacob, 

The following is Grand Rapids Metrology’s detailed proposal for (1) NEW 50’ x 11’ Rice Lake Survivor Steel Deck truck 

scale system, which will be installed on a new scale foundation. Our package, as identified below, will include all the 

necessary equipment and labor for a successful installation, per your requirements.  

SCALE EQUIPMENT: 

(1) RICE LAKE OTR SURVIVOR STEEL DECK TRUCK SCALE

• 50’ x 11’ platform size

• 90,000 lb. CLC

• 200,000 lb. x 20 lb. capacity

• 18.75’’ scale profile

• 75,000 lb. load cell capacity

• (2) 4’’ Laserlight remote display with mounting pole and

hardware included

• (1) 1280i indicator included

• (1) 295 ticket printer included

• Single high rub rails included

• Rice Lake 12-year warranty included

FOUNDATION SCOPE OF WORK*: 

• Form and pour 50’ x 11’ x 1’ scale foundation

• Form and pour (2) 11’ x 10’ x 10’’ reinforced scale approaches/end walls

• Form and pour (2) display pole mount foundations

*Assumptions for no underground obstructions and good draining ground to build on.  Cold weather charges may

apply from November through April as added chemicals/materials may be required.

33



Quote #011629 P a g e  | 3 

Grand Rapids | Metro Detroit | Bay City 

www.grmetrology.com 

American Classic Roofing and Building Responsibilities: 
As a valued partner in this project, we ask American Classic Roofing and Building to assume the following 
responsibilities: 

• Obtain all necessary permits and ensure compliance with all state weight and measurement regulations.

• Provide soil test to meet the manufacturer’s required soil bearing, if required.

• Provide location layout design for placement.

• Ensure safety barricades are available, as needed.

• Provide all electrical work, conduit, and materials, if needed.

• Provide safety watch, if needed.

• Provide scale office.

• Provide all excavation/backfill needed prior to concrete foundation work.

• Ensure scale area/foundation is clean and clear of debris.

American Classic Roofing and Building Representative Initial Here: 

A down payment of 30% of the total project is required when placing this order: $29,618.83. The new scale equipment 
will not be ordered until the down payment is received. If the scale is delivered, and the completion of the installation is 
delayed, 50% of the overall project will be invoiced upon delivery. The remaining balance is due upon completion of the 
project Please remit all orders to the email address: orders@grmetrology.com. Please include your tax-exempt certificate 
(if applicable)

American Classic Roofing and Building 
Estimated Investment Summary 

Rice Lake Survivor Truck Scale Equipment:  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   .  .  .  .  .  .  .    $ 98,729.44 

(Includes truck scale, (2)remote displays, indicator, printer, rub rails, crane, concrete foundation work, 

labor/calibration and incoming freight)  

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Truck Scale Investment:   .  .  .  .  .  .  .   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 98,729.44* 
*Freight, and installation are included in total investment (pricing valid for 14 days from date of quote).
Sales tax will be additional, if applicable.

34

mailto:orders@grmetrology.com


Quote #011629 P a g e  | 4 

Grand Rapids | Metro Detroit | Bay City 

www.grmetrology.com  

Additional Terms and Conditions are as follows: 

1. All equipment, labor, and applicable freight and shipping & handling charges will be invoiced Net 30 days upon

customer receipt.

2. A 20% restocking fee plus applicable freight charges may apply for returned equipment. The customer is

responsible for the total amount of equipment, plus any applicable labor and freight charges when returning

custom built systems.

3. Anticipated delivery is 32-36 weeks from receipt of your purchase order. You will be advised as to any modification

of the delivery schedule.

4. Provide non-union labor for work to be performed Monday through Friday, 7:30am-4:30pm

5. Product warranty is as stated by the manufacturer.

Planned Maintenance 
Grand Rapids Metrology offers the value-added benefit of a planned maintenance program for your measurement 
equipment.  The program includes regular inspection of equipment with an accredited certificate of calibration.  Let Grand 
Rapids Metrology manage your measurement equipment, so you can focus on your core mission.  We will contact you 
(closer to your next inspection date) to schedule the inspection and review charges prior to our visit. 

Standard Terms of Agreement 
Our payment terms are Net 30, unless otherwise specified. We are, above all, flexible – but in terms of best practices, our 
customers find it best to create a blanket PO for the year against which we bill each month. We can also implement 
recurring invoicing and bill-pay, and support wire-transfer electronic payments.  

The purchaser shall pay all applicable sales, consumer use, and other similar taxes required by law. If tax exempt, please 
supply Grand Rapids Metrology with your tax-exempt certificate. The purchaser shall secure and pay for all permits, 
governmental fees, and license necessary for the proper execution and completion of the work.  

Acknowledgement 
Grand Rapids Metrology is A2LA and ISO 17025 accredited. With the A2LA and ISO assurance, you can rely on us to provide 
the highest quality products and services, at competitive prices, with a reliable delivery schedule, and installation 
performed by the most highly trained service force in the industry.  

We also offer 24-hour automated telephone answering in the event of an emergency. With three locations to serve your 
needs, our travel and mileage costs are kept at a minimum.  

We are excited to work with you on this project and want to do what it takes to earn your business! If you have any 

questions, comments, or concerns about this quote, please do not hesitate to let us know. 

35



Quote #011629 P a g e  | 5 

Grand Rapids | Metro Detroit | Bay City 

www.grmetrology.com 

I accept all terms and conditions of this proposal: 

American Classic Roofing and Building 

Name: ___________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________ 

PO #: ____________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________________ 

Please remit all orders to the email address: orders@grmetrology.com. Please include your tax-exempt certificate (if 
applicable). 

Grand Rapids Metrology 

Name: Jason Dennis 

Title:  Heavy Capacity Sales 

Date: November 17, 2023 

36

mailto:orders@grmetrology.com


www.ricelake.com

OTR S E R I E S
STEEL DECK TRUCK SCALES

37



38



Uncompromising  
SURVIVOR® Strength

Bent Plate Construction

Competitor Designs
Most other manufacturers use fewer I-beams or 
bent-channel beams to reduce initial scale cost. However, 
these designs reduce structural integrity, causing greater 
deflection—shortening the lifespan of the weighbridge. 
Additionally, some designs require top and bottom deck 
plates, trapping corrosion-causing moisture inside the 
weighbridge.

Junior I-Beam Construction

Selecting a steel deck truck scale 
means choosing a long-lasting, quick-
to-install vehicle weighing solution. The 
SURVIVOR OTR steel deck is designed 
to reduce downtime by simplifying 
installation and maintenance.

More Structural Steel
Rice Lake Weighing Systems’ SURVIVOR truck scales are 
constructed with up to 25% more structural steel than competitor 
models, providing the increased deck support and weighbridge 
strength necessary to last a generation or more.
Making the Toughest Truck Scales on Earth® begins with design. 
Rice Lake’s engineering team uses Finite Element Analysis (FEA) 
technology to identify key stress points on truck scales. This data 
is used to design scales with superior structural integrity, which 
provides maximum durability for your investment.

Long-Lasting Value
These design elements allow SURVIVOR OTR truck scales  
to accommodate a minimum of 250 trucks every day for  
25 years without weighbridge fatigue—the equivalent of more 
than 2 million vehicle weighments.
Rice Lake’s warranty covers load cells, junction boxes and 
suspension systems to ensure worry-free operation. SURVIVOR 
OTR truck scales also include a lightning protection package, 
and weighbridges are warranted against defects in materials and 
workmanship. Rice Lake offers either a 5-year or industry-leading 
12-year warranty from delivery.

Durable Steel Deck Construction
The wide-flange I-beam construction of SURVIVOR truck scales 
minimizes deflection, which has a major impact on the life of the 
weighbridge. Deflection is the change, or bend, along the primary 
axis between no-load and rated load conditions. When a vehicle 
drives onto the scale, there will be longitudinal deflection and the 
heavier the vehicle is, the greater the deflection will be.

Reliable Steel Deck Design
SURVIVOR scales incorporate more longitudinal 
beams than other manufacturers to better support the 
weighbridge and ensure structural stress remains below 
fatigue limits during deflection. This design supports 
vehicle tires across the entire weighbridge deck.

39



Self-Checking  
Mounting System

The G-Force™ self-checking 
mounting system on SURVIVOR 

truck scales eliminates excess movement 
and scale fatigue by using 100% of the 

gravitational force from the vehicle loading 
action against itself. This allows the scale to 

return to center without the use of check rods and 
bumper bolts.

P-Bracket Installation
SURVIVOR truck scales use self-seating P-brackets that
simplify weighbridge module connection. The P-bracket
design eliminates the need to bolt modules together, ensuring
proper vehicle loading during environmental temperature changes
that cause modules to expand or contract.

Breathing Room Below
SURVIVOR OTR steel deck truck scales have 
an open-bottom design, using only a top deck 
plate on the weighbridge. This eliminates 
the cavity where condensation can collect, 
helping to prevent premature system failure 
due to rusting components.

G-Force Mounting System
The vehicle loading force is directed down to the load cell 
mounts, minimizing foundation wear.

Check Rod and Bumper Bolt System
The vehicle loading force is directed horizontally into the foundation, 
resulting in costly maintenance.

40



Load Cell Pockets
The load cell pockets on SURVIVOR truck 
scales are integrated into the longitudinal beams, 
providing a stable framework for suspension 
components and reducing structural fatigue on the 
ends of the weighbridge.
SURVIVOR load cell pockets also feature boltless 
top access plates. This design allows load cells and 
electronics to be accessed from the top of the scale 
deck for convenient maintenance. Boltless covers 
also reduce downtime by eliminating the time-
consuming work of removing bolts that have been 
frozen or rusted in place.

41



HEADQUARTERS
230 West Coleman Street

Rice Lake, Wisconsin 54868 - USA
Tel: (715) 234 9171  |  Fax: (715) 234 6967

www.ricelake.com

SURVIVOR OTR STEEL DECK STANDARD FEATURES
• Open bottom design
• Longitudinal I-beam construction
• Integrated load cell pockets
• Boltless, top access to load cells and junction box
• Self-seating, P-bracket connection between modules
• G-force mount assemblies return the scale to center without check rods or 

bumper bolts
• Cables completely encased in rodent-proof conduit
• Thorough finishing process includes cleaning of steel before and after welding, 

followed by either high solids urethane liquid paint or durable powder paint

OPTIONS
• 10 lb division for truck or livestock
• 20 lb division
• 50 lb division/400,000 lb capacity
• 1/2, 3/8, or 1 inch deck plate upgrade
• Schedule 40 guiderails
• Schedule 80 guiderails
• Manhole
• Slotted manhole
• Grain dump
• Dolly down plate
• End cleanout
• Stainless steel load cells
• Tapered links and radius blocks
• Pre-suspended load cells and mounts
• Stainless steel suspension hardware
• Galvanized weighbridge and suspension hardware
• Custom coatings
• 3/8 inch runners
• Roll-off
• Side deflector plates
• Catwalk
• Landing with stairs
• iQUBE2® digital diagnostic junction box bundles

Elevate Your Truck 
Scale Performance 
with iQUBE²®
Rice Lake’s iQUBE² digital diagnostic 
junction box performs the same diagnostic 
functions as a scale that uses a digital load 
cell, but at a more cost-effective price and 
with more benefits.
This advanced junction box runs diagnostics for failed load cells, 
weighing errors and overall system health. Additional benefits 
include being less susceptible to damage from vibration and 
moisture, sending email alerts to a designated service provider 
and using load cell emulation to ensure your scale can weigh 
temporarily even after a cell failure.

SURVIVOR OTR STEEL DECK SPECIFICATIONS
LOAD CELLS: Rice Lake RL75058-LP alloy steel,Double-ended beam75,000 lb capacity
MOUNT ASSEMBLIES: G-force self-checking mounting system
JUNCTION BOX: JB8SPT Tuffseal® polycarbonate NEMA Type 4X enclosure with overlapping solid cover,  

stainless steel screws
PLATFORM SIZE: 10 to 160 ft length 

10 ft, 11 ft and 12 ft width, NTEP Certified up to 16.5 ft 
(custom length and width available)

SCALE PROFILE: 16.5 in or 18.75 in (custom profiles available)
DECK THICKNESS: 5/16 in (other sizes available)
FULL SCALE CAPACITY: Up to 270,000 lb
CONCENTRATED LOAD  
CAPACITY (CLC): 100,000 lb
DUAL TANDEM AXLE (DTA): 100,000 lb
WARRANTY: Weighbridge: 5-year or 12-year limited 

Parts: 5-year or 12-year limited, including lightning protection
APPROVALS: NTEP CC 02-003, Class IIIL 

Measurement Canada AM-5413

OTR S E R I E S
STEEL DECK

Specifications subject to change without notice. © 2022 Rice Lake Weighing Systems  PN 163010  en-US  8/23  REV-D

SALES AND TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE

42



43



AGENDA 

Regular Board Meeting 

The Oceana County Board of Commissioners will hold its Regular Meeting on Thursday, March 28, 2024, 

beginning at 11:30 a.m. in the Oceana County Board of Commissioners Room, 100 State Street, Hart, MI 49420. 

Board Chair: Robert Walker              Board Vice-Chair: Tim Beggs 

Presenter Description Item # 

Chair Pledge of Allegiance 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Approval of minutes from 

          Regular BOC Mtg of March 14, 2024                Pages 46 - 49 

Conflict of Interest Disclosure Regarding Agenda Items 

Changes to the Agenda 

Approval of the Agenda 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Mr. Erickson Medical Care Facility Ballot Language 

Motion 2024-37 to adopt Resolution 24-05 approving the ballot language 

proposition for the August election for the provision of an operating millage for 

the Oceana County Medical Care Facility.          

    Roll Call 

2024-37 

Mr. Morse Oceana County Master Plan 

Motion 2024-38 to approve Resolution 24-06 to adopt the 2024 Oceana County 

Master Plan and allow for distribution to the notice group.  

    Roll Call 

2024-38 

Mr. Beggs Oceana County Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Motion 2024-39 to approve Resolution 24-07 to adopt the 2024 Oceana County 

Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

     Roll Call 

2024-39 

Mr. Hardy Airport Courtesy Car 

Motion 2024-40 to allow for the disposal of a 2013 Ford, VIN

#1FAHP2M86DG113447 and transfer to the Oceana County Airport 

Association for $1.00 for the purpose of a courtesy car. 

   Roll Call 

2024-40 

Oceana County Board of Commissioners 
County Building 

100 State Street, Suite M-4, Hart, MI  49420 

44



Page 2 

Presenter Description Item # 

Mr. Erickson Elections/Interim Elderly/Shelby Twp Comm Park Budget Adjustment 

Motion 2024-41 to adopt budget amendment 04-2024 totaling $1,159,189 to

adjust lines in the Election, Interim Elderly and Shelby Twp Comm Park 
budgets..   Roll Call

2024-41 

Mr. Beggs MMRMA Rap Grant/Body Scanner 

Motion 2024-42 to allow the submission of the application for a Rap Grant 

through the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority for $50,000 

toward the purchase of a full body scanner for the jail and the remaining $92,500 

to be paid from the Jail Commissary Fund. 

   Roll Call 

2024-42 

Mr. Hardy Payment of Claims        Pages 50 - 52 2024-43 

REPORTS FROM COMMISSIONERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Adjournment 

45



UNOFFICIAL

1 MARCH 14, 2024 

Board Conference Room 
March 14, 2024 
Board of Commissioners Minutes 

The regular meeting of the Oceana County Board of Commissioners was called to order by Chairperson 

Walker, on Thursday, March 14, 2024, at 11:31 p.m. 

Chairperson Walker led the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 

America. 

Roll was called by Clerk Anderson. Present: Mr. Erickson, Mr. Morse, Mr. Beggs, Mr. Hardy, and Mr. 

Walker.  

Also Present: Ms. Byard, Oceana County Administrator; Mr. John Cavanagh, Oceana’s Herald-Journal 

correspondent; and Ms. Anderson, Oceana County Clerk. 

Moved by Mr. Beggs and supported by Mr. Hardy to approve the minutes from the February 22, 2024 

Regular Board Meeting as presented.  

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Chairperson Walker asked if any commissioners wished to declare any conflicts of interest on the 

agenda items. No conflicts were declared. 

Chairperson Walker asked if there were any additions to the agenda. Mr. Walker noted that Motion 

#2024-35 and Motion #2024-37 will be removed from the agenda. 

Moved by Mr. Erickson and supported by Mr. Morse to approve the agenda as amended. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Public Comment 

There were no public comments at this time. 

Agenda Items 

MOTION #2024-30 – MASON OCEANA 911 SURCHARGE 

Moved by Mr. Hardy and supported by Mr. Beggs, to approve the recommendation of the Mason-

Oceana 911 Board to continue the assessment of a local telephone surcharge in the amount of $2.09 

with no change. 

Roll call vote: Mr. Hardy – yes; Mr. Beggs – yes; Mr. Erickson – yes; Mr. Morse – yes; and 

Mr. Walker – yes. 

Motion carried. 

MOTION #2024–31 – VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMISSION APPOINTMENT 

Moved by Mr. Beggs and supported by Mr. Erickson, to appoint Samuel J. Stitt, IV to the Veteran 

Affairs Committee for an unexpired term to expire on December 31, 2026. 

Roll call vote: Mr. Beggs – yes; Mr. Erickson – yes; Mr. Hardy – yes; Mr. Morse – yes; and 

Mr. Walker – yes. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

MOTION #2024 – 32 – WEST MICHIGAN COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH APPOINTMENT 

46



  UNOFFICIAL 

2 MARCH 14, 2024 

 

 

Moved by Mr. Morse and supported by Mr. Hardy, to appoint Kay Seng to the West Michigan 

Community Mental Health Board to expire on March 31, 2027. 

 

 Roll call vote: Mr. Morse – yes; Mr. Hardy – yes; Mr. Erickson – yes; Mr. Beggs – yes; and  

Mr. Walker – yes.  

 

 Voice vote. Motion carried. 

 

MOTION #2024–33 – LANDBANK AUTHORITY PURCHASING AND PROCUREMENT POLICY 

 

Moved by Mr. Erickson and supported by Mr. Beggs, to approve the Purchasing and Procurement Policy 

as submitted by the Landbank Authority.  

  

Roll call vote: Mr. Erickson – yes; Mr. Beggs – yes; Mr. Morse – yes; Mr. Hardy – yes; and 

   Mr. Walker – yes.   

 

 Motion carried. 

 

MOTION #2024-34 – ELECTIONS BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

Moved by Mr. Beggs and supported by Mr. Hardy, to adopt budget amendment #02-2024 totaling 

$37,700 to adjust lines for payouts relating to the nine-day early voting. 

 

 Roll call vote: Mr. Beggs - yes; Mr. Hardy - yes; Mr. Erickson - yes; Mr. Morse - yes; and Mr.  

                               Walker - yes.  

 

 Motion carried. 

                            

MOTION #2024-36 – PAYMENT OF CLAIMS 

  

Moved by Mr. Hardy and supported by Mr. Erickson, to adopt Motion #2024-36, approving the payment 

of accounts payable and release of funds for March 14, 2024. 

 

 

AMBULANCE  $1,996.09 

GIS    -0- 

FOC  11,175.06 

PENTWATER-HART TRAIL     1,282.72 

SHELBY TWP COMM PARK  -0- 

BROWNFIELD    3,447.50 

AUTOMATION R.O.D.    -0- 

INDIGENT DEFENSE  32,039.10 

LCOT    -0- 

K9 UNIT  -0- 

CJT  200.00 

CDBG    -0- 

ARPA  10.51 

VETERANS AFFAIRS  6,490.73 

TECH & INNOVATION  4,138.50 

CAPITAL PROG/EQUIP REP  -0- 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT    -0- 

FORECLOSURE    -0- 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT    24,432.77 

47



  UNOFFICIAL 

3 MARCH 14, 2024 

 

GENERAL FUND  542,273.12 

 

 GRAND TOTAL $627,486.10 

 

Roll call vote: Mr. Hardy – yes; Mr. Erickson – yes; Mr. Morse – yes; Mr. Beggs –yes; and  

Mr. Walker – yes.  

 

Motion carried. 

 

Mr. Walker asked Mr. Erickson if there was any progress on the Pentwater Trail.  Mr. Erickson reported 

it was losing traction.  Mr. Erickson will reach out to find out status. 

 

Commissioner’s Reports 

 

Mr. Beggs stated there was a Road Commission meeting yesterday.  There are a lot of road projects 

being planned for the year.  He stated that Sandy Griffin has retired after 39 years.  Mr. Walker 

requested a letter of thanks be drafted to her to show appreciation. 

 

Mr. Morse voiced his thanks to the person who covered the $1000 Drain Commission Template.  Mr. 

Brady Selner is done at the Village of Shelby as the Village Administrator.  There is an interim 

administrator for the next three to four months until a new replacement is found.  Shelby Twp. Park 

is moving along.  He announced that he is now the OCEA chair and very excited for this opportunity.  

There will be an action plan meeting on April 4 from 12:00 – 2:00. Ms. Tracy Byard and Mr. Mark 

Timmer have been added to the board.   

 

Mr. Erickson stated he was glad to have Mr. Kory Hansen here to discuss the MCF and get the ballot 

language sorted out.  He stated that there was a meeting at Leavitt Township where the cost of the 

brining of the roads were a big topic.  

 

Mr. Walker stated there was a walk-through of the District Health Department building.  There has 

been some correspondence with Kevin Hughes, where there was discussion regarding the possibility 

of moving the Building Inspection Department to the DHS building.  He asked if this was something 

that all board members want to pursue.  The board members consensus was that they were interested 

in this move.  This would also open up more office space for the Veterans Affairs Department.  He also 

noted that locating a fire hydrant at the DHD would be a good idea.  Contact will be made with the 

fire chief.  Mr. Walker also stated that Lakeshore Regional Entity (LRE) oversees substance abuse at 

CMH.  There are two LRE committees that meet, one in Muskegon (for operational purposes) and one 

in Holland (for oversite purposes).  He received an invite to attend the oversite committee meeting.  

He also mentioned that on Monday, March 18, 2024, there will be a dinner at the MSU Research Center 

hosted by the Oceana County Soil Conservation District. 

 

Mr. Morse requested that the next time there is a walk-through of facilities, it it would it be possible 

to visit the Animal Control Building and the Airport.  Mr. Walker mentioned that these facilities are 

both fairly new and very nice facilities.  

 

Public Comment 

 

There were no public comments at this time. 

 

 

Chairperson Walker asked if there was any further business to come before the Board. There being 

none, the meeting adjourned at 11:57 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Amy L. Anderson, Oceana County Clerk 

 

48



  UNOFFICIAL 

4 MARCH 14, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________   _______________________________ 

Date        Mr. Walker, Chairperson 

49



FUND DEPT # DEPARTMENT PR# PAID UNPAID TOTAL
210 AMBULANCE 58.60$                            -$                              58.60$                              

AMBULANCE FUND TOTAL 58.60$                            -$                              58.60$                              
211 GIS -$                                -$                              -$                                 

GIS FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
215 FOC -$                                -$                              -$                                 

FOC PAYROLL 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
FOC FICA 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
FOC RETIREMENT 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
FOC FRINGE 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
WORKERS COMP 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

FOC FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
238 PENTWATER-HART TRAIL -$                                -$                              -$                                 

PENTWATER-HART TRAIL FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
239 SHELBY TWP COMMUNITY PARK -$                                -$                              -$                                 

SHELBY TWP COMMUNITY PARK FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
243 BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY -$                                -$                              -$                                 

           BROWNFIELD REDEVELOP. AUTHORITY TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
256 AUTOMATION R.O.D. -$                                -$                              -$                                 

AUTOMATION R.O.D. FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
260 INDIGENT DEFENSE -$                                10,692.65$                   10,692.65$                       

INDIGENT DEFENSE PAYROLL 2,141.95$                       -$                              2,141.95$                         
INDIGENT DEFENSE FICA 6 163.86$                          -$                              163.86$                            
INDIGENT DEFENSE RETIREMENT 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
INDIGENT DEFENSE FRINGE 6 94.62$                            -$                              94.62$                              
WORKERS COMP 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

INDIGENT DEFENSE FUND TOTAL 2,400.43$                       10,692.65$                   13,093.08$                       
264 LCOT -$                                -$                              -$                                 

LCOT PAYROLL 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
LCOT FICA 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
LCOT RETIREMENT 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
WORKERS COMP 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
RETIREMENT 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

LOCT FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
267 K9 UNIT -$                                -$                              -$                                 

K9 UNIT FUND -$                                -$                              -$                                 
272 CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING -$                                -$                              -$                                 

CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
277 CDBG -$                                -$                              -$                                 

CDBG FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
286 ARPA -$                                -$                                 

APRA FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
293 DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS 1,913.11$                       212.44$                        2,125.55$                         

DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS PAYROLL 6 3,606.92$                       -$                              3,606.92$                         
DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS FICA 6 272.70$                          -$                              272.70$                            
DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS RETIREMENT 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

Board Approval of Accounts Payable & Release of Funds
for Thursday, March 28, 2024

50



DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS FRINGE 6 69.53$                            -$                              69.53$                              
WORKERS COMP 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS FUND TOTAL 5,862.26$                       212.44$                        6,074.70$                         
298 TECHNOLOGY & INNOVATION 911.72$                          12,000.79$                   12,912.51$                       

TECHNOLOGY & INNOVATION FUND TOTAL 700.33$                          12,000.79$                   12,701.12$                       
405 CAPITAL PROJ-EQUIP REPLACE -$                                -$                              -$                                 

CAPITAL PROJ-EQUIP REPLACE FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
445 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT -$                                -$                              -$                                 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
549 BUILDING DEPARTMENT 14,636.87$                     -$                              14,636.87$                       

BUILDING DEPARTMENT PAYROLL 6 2,471.27$                       -$                              2,471.27$                         
BUILDING DEPARTMENT FICA 6 184.45$                          -$                              184.45$                            
BUILDING DEPARTMENT RETIREMENT 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
BUILDING DEPARTMENT FRINGE 6 139.85$                          -$                              139.85$                            
WORKERS COMP 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND TOTAL 17,432.44$                     -$                              17,432.44$                       
101 GENERAL FUND PR# PAID UNPAID TOTAL

101 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 8,330.02$                       -$                              8,330.02$                         
172 ADMINISTRATOR/FISCAL OFFICER 202.28$                          22.47$                          224.75$                            
208 INSURANCE 100.00$                          -$                              100.00$                            
209 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION -$                                -$                              -$                                 
215 COUNTY CLERK -$                                310.23$                        310.23$                            
216 JURY BOARD -$                                -$                              -$                                 
217 APPORTIONMENT -$                                -$                              -$                                 
223 COUNTY AUDITING -$                                -$                              -$                                 
228 DATA PROCESSING 950.00$                          144.84$                        1,094.84$                         
229 TECHNOLOGY -$                                -$                              -$                                 
244 TAX ALLOCATION -$                                -$                              -$                                 
245 REMONUMENTATION -$                                -$                              -$                                 
248 GENERAL SERVICES 1,877.72$                       740.91$                        2,618.63$                         
249 PLAT BOARD -$                                -$                              -$                                 
250 MICROFILM -$                                -$                              -$                                 
253 COUNTY TREASURER -$                                -$                              -$                                 
257 EQUALIZATION 40.01$                            18,634.45$                   18,674.46$                       
262 ELECTIONS 50.85$                            16,334.85$                   16,385.70$                       
265 COURTHOUSE/GROUNDS 389.26$                          372.48$                        761.74$                            
283 CIRCUIT COURT 1,318.99$                       900.50$                        2,219.49$                         
286 DISTRICT COURT 499.77$                          608.86$                        1,108.63$                         
289 FRIEND OF THE COURT 94.50$                            3,268.53$                     3,363.03$                         
294 PROBATE COURT -$                                323.03$                        323.03$                            
295 PROBATION/PAROLE -$                                243.55$                        243.55$                            
296 PROSECUTING ATTORNEY -$                                195.25$                        195.25$                            
298 FAMILY COUNSELING -$                                -$                              -$                                 
301 SHERIFF 21,891.97$                     12,852.62$                   34,744.59$                       
331 MARINE LAW -$                                1,892.90$                     1,892.90$                         
332 SNOWMOBILE ENFORCEMENT -$                                -$                              -$                                 
333 ROAD PATROL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
351 JAIL 3,116.54$                       1,256.34$                     4,372.88$                         

51



426 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT -$                                -$                              -$                                 
430 ANIMAL CONTROL 769.32$                          10,283.88$                   11,053.20$                       
442 DRAIN COMMISSIONER 920.10$                          -$                              920.10$                            
445 DRAINS - PUBLIC BENEFIT -$                                -$                              -$                                 
528 TRANSFER STATION/RECYCLING CENTER 48.80$                            27,339.03$                   27,387.83$                       
568 SOIL CONSERVATION -$                                -$                              -$                                 
595 AIRPORT 243.66$                          5.99$                            249.65$                            
601 HEALTH DEPARTMENT 45.19$                            -$                              45.19$                              
605 CONTAGIOUS DISEASES -$                                -$                              -$                                 
648 MEDICAL EXAMINER -$                                8,950.62$                     8,950.62$                         
649 COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH -$                                -$                              -$                                 
701 PLANNING COMMISSION 89.78$                            -$                              89.78$                              
710 MSU EXTENSION -$                                -$                              -$                                 
711 REGISTER OF DEEDS -$                                50.68$                          50.68$                              
728 EDC -$                                -$                              -$                                 

GENERAL PAYROLL 6 210,526.18$                   -$                              210,526.18$                     
GENERAL FICA 6 15,706.69$                     -$                              15,706.69$                       
GENERAL RETIREMENT 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
GENERAL FRINGE 6 8,941.20$                       -$                              8,941.20$                         
WORKERS COMP 6 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

GENERAL FUND TOTAL 276,152.83$                   104,732.01$                 380,884.84$                     
GRAND TOTAL 286,839.84$                   127,637.89$                 430,244.78$                     

GENERAL FUND WITHOUT PAYROLL 40,978.76$                     

52


	Cover
	Public Notice
	Properties, Environment and Economic Development Committee
	Minutes
	MSU Extension Annual Report
	Master Plan Resolution 24-06

	Finance and Administration
	Minutes
	Medical Care Facility Ballot Language Resolution 24-05
	Hazard Mitigation Plan Adoption Resolution 24-07
	Budget Amendment Elections/Interim Elderly/Shelby Twp Comm Park
	MMRMA Rap Grant Request for Body Scanner
	Administrator's Review of Claims
	Administrator's Report
	Transfer Station Scale Quotes
	Letter of Opposition


	Regular Agenda
	Minutes
	Claims for Payment




